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Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

Note 2014 2013 
$ $ 

Income 

Revenue 

Recurrent revenue 

Communily levies, rates and charges 3(a) 940,600 1,106,690 

Fees and charges 221,606 143,536 

Rental income 3(b) 4, !166,625 3,596,275 

Interest received 440,365 276,349 

Salas revenue 3(c) 24,600,925 22,890,208 

Other income 581,655 117,140 

Grants. subsidies, contributions and donations 4(8) 19,116,765 30,297,292 

50,776.~1 58,431 ,490 

Capital revenue 

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(b) 4,903,762 1,587,665 

4,903,762 1,587,665 

Total Revenue 55,680,203 60,019,155 

Capital Income 5 27,139,142 2,531 ,602 

Total Income 82,819,346 62,550,757 

Expenses 

Recurrent expenses 

Employee beneflls 6 (18,185,603) (17,592,195) 

Materials and services 7 (27 ,500,862) (36,660,271 ) 

Finance costs 6 (81,683) (5,616,744) 

Depreciation • (25,480,754) (25,667,834) 

(71,249,102) (85,757,044) 

Capital expenses 10 (942,710) (10,547) 

Total Expenses (72,191,813) (85,767,591) 

Net Result 10,627,533 (23,216,834) 

Other compnthenslve income 

Increase I (decrease) in asset ravalualion surplus 21 21,656,978 

Total other comprehensive income for the year 21 ,656,978 

Total compreh11nsive income for the year 32,284,511 (23,216,834) 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Sign~icsntkcounting Policies 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Statement of Financial Position 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other receivables 

Inventories 

Other financial assets 

Total current assets 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets 

Other financial assets 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 

Borrowings 

Provisions 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

Borrowings 

Provisions 

Total non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net community assets 

Community equity 

Asset revaluation surplus 

Retained surplus/(deficiency) 

Total community equity 

Note 

11 

12 

13 
14 

15 

17 

14 

18 

19 

20 

19 

20 

21 

• Comparative figures have been restated. Refer to Note 27 for details 

• Restated 
2014 2013 

$ $ 

17,273,347 14,226,339 

9,640,768 7,791 '150 

417,999 547,971 

166,326 

27,498,441 22,565,460 

27,498,441 22,565,460 

691 ,922,986 666,134,766 

1,199,003 1,129,278 

2.589,391 

695,711,380 667,264,044 

723,209,821 689,829,504 

5,490,149 3,688,796 

43,862 41 ,392 

3,743,039 737,216 

9,277,050 4,467,404 

378,182 422,024 

274,548 3,047,861 

652,730 3,469,885 

9,929,780 7,937,289 

713,280,042 681,892,215 

155,407,899 150,357,342 

557,872,145 531,534,875 

713,280,045 681,892,216 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 

Statement of Changes In Equity 

For the year ended 30 June 2014 

Balance as at 1st July 2013 (Restated) 

Effect of correction of error 

Restated balances 

Net result 

Increase I (decrease) In asset revaluation surplus 

Transfer Asset Revaluation Surplus to Retained Surplus 

Total comprehensive Income for the year 

Balance as at 30th June 2014 

Balance as at 1st July 2012 

Effect of correction of error 

Restated balances 

Net Resun 
Increase I (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 
Total comprehensive Income for the year 

Balance as at 30th June 2013 

Note 

27 

21 

27 

21 

• Comparative figures have been restated. Refer to Note 27 for details 

Asset Revaluation 
Surplus Retained Surplus Total 

$ 

150,357,342 

150,357,342 

5,050,557 

5,050,557 

155,407,899 

153,176,979 

( 2,819,637) 

150,357,342 

150,357,342 

$ 

531,534,875 

( 896,684) 

530,638,191 

10,627,533 

16,606,421 
27,233,954 

557,872,145 

553,978,569 

773,141 

554,751,710 

( 23,216,834) 

( 23,216,834) 

531,534,875 

$ 

681,892,216 

( 896,664) 

660,995,533 

10,627,533 

5,050,557 

16,606,421 
32,264,511 

713,280,045 

707,155,549 

( 2,046,496) 

705,109,053 

( 23,216,834) 

( 23,216,834) 

681,892,216 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended 30 June 2014 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts from customers 

Payments to suppliers and employees 

Interest received 

Non capital grants and contributions 

Borrowing costs 

Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Payments for property, plant and equipment 

Payments for intangible assets 

Proceeds fnom sale of property plant and equipment 

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 

Net cash inflow {outflow) from investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Repayment of borrowings 

Net cash Inflow (outflow) from financing aCtivities 

Net Increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalent held 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 

Note 

19 

11 

2014 

$ 

29,369,693 

Council 

{43,617, 187) 

(14,247,495) 

440,365 

19,1 16,765 

(28,697) 

5,280,938 

(6,932, 1 05) 

(257,937) 

93,723 

4,903,762 

(2, 192,557) 

(41,373) 

(41 ,373) 

3,047,008 

14,226,339 

17,273,347 

The above statement should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 

2013 

$ 

25,613,645 

{54,451' 100) 

(28,837,455) 

278,349 

30,297,292 

(31,170) 

1,707,016 

(2,039,899) 

{371,969) 

156,529 

1,587,665 

(667,674} 

(38,900) 

(38,900) 

1,000,442 

13,225,897 

14,226,339 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

Significant accounting policies 

1.A Basis of preparation 

These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 and have been prepared in 
compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012. Consequently, 
these financial stBiements have been prepared in accordance with all Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting 
Interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain non­
current assets. 

1.8 Statement of compliance 

These general purpose financial statements comply with all accounting standards and interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to Council's operations and effective for the current reporting period. 
Because the Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards include requirements for not-for-profit 
entities which are inconsistent with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS), to the extent these inconsistencies are 
applied, these flllllnclal statements do not comply with IFRS. The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation and impairment 
gains and losses within a class of assets, and the timing of the recognition of non-reciprocal grant revenue. 

1.C Constitution 

The Torres Strait island Regional Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in 
Australia. 

1.0 Date of authorisation 

The financial statements were authorised for Issue on the date they were submitted to the Auditor-General for final signature. 
This is the date the management certifiCate Is signed. 

1.E Currency 

The Council uses the Australian dollar as Its functional currency and its presentation currency. 

1.F Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards 

In the current year. Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board {AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective tor the current reporting period. The adoption of the new 
and revised Standards and Interpretations has not resulted In any material changes to Council's accounting policies. However the 
Application of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 13 for the first time this year has resulted In greater disclosures. 

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations listed below were in issue but not yet 
effective. 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

AASB 9 Flnanclallnstrvments (December 2009} 

2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB g (December 2009) 
AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) 

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint 
Arrangements Standards 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Offsetllng Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities 
[AASB 132] 

AASB 2013-1 Amendments to AASB 1049- Relocation of Budgetary Reporting Requirments 
AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 

AASB 2013-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards -Investment Entities [AASB 1, AASB 3, 
AASB 7, AASB 10, AASB 12, AASB 107, AASB 112, AASB 124, AASB 127, AASB 132, AASB 134 & AASB 
139] 

AASB 2013-6 Amendments to AASB 136 arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements 

AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Australian Implementation Guidance for 
Not-for-Profit Entitles- Control and Structured Entfties [AASB 10, AASB 12 &AASB 1049) 

AASB2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Conceptual Framework, Materiality and 
Financial Instruments 
{Operative dates: Part A Conceptual framework - 20 Dec 2013; Part B Materiality- 1 Jan 2014; Part C 
Flnanclat Instruments - 1 Jan 2015) 

1.G Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Effective for 
annual report 

periods beginning 
on or after: 

1 January 2017 

1 January 2015 
1 January 2015 

1 January 2014 

1 January 2014 

1 July 2014 
1 January 2014 

1 January 2014 

1 January 2014 

1 January 2014 

1 January 2014 

In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. The estimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised end In future periods as relevant. 

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial statement 
notes: 

Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment - Note 1.0 and Note 15 
Impairment of property, plant and equipment- Note 1.Q and Note 10 
Provisions- Note 1.T and 1.V and Note 20 
Valuation of finance leases- Note 1.R 
Contingencies - Note 23 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

1.H Revenue 

Rates. levies. grants and other revenue are recognised as revenue on receipt of funds or earlier upon unconditional eotitk!ment to 
the funds. 

Rates and Communitv leyles 
The amount is recognised as revenue in the period in which they are received, otherwise levies are recognised at the 
commencement of levy period. 

Grants and subsidies 
Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year in which CooncH 
obtains control over them. 

Non-cash contributions 
Non-cash contributions with a value in excess of the recognition thresholds, are recognised as revenue and as non-current 
assets. Non-cash contributions below the thresholds are recorded as revenue and expenses. 

Rental jocome 
Rental revenue from community housing and commercial rentals Is recognised as income on a periodic straight line basis over 
the lease term. Council does not have any investment property. 

~ 
Interest received from operating bank, cash management accounts and term deposits Is accrued over the temn of the Investment. 

sales revenue 
Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, generally when the 
customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods. 
The Council generates revenues from a number of services including accommodation, fuel, and plant & equipment hire. Revenue 
from contracts and recoverable VIIOrks generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with an hourly charge for use 
of equipment and employees. Contract revenue and associated costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of 
the contract activity at the reporting date. 

Fees and Charges 
Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. 

Capjtal Income from Contributed Assets 

Capital income from contributed assets recognises as income those assets that have been transferred to the Council from other 
Government entities and Departments. The majority of these assets are from Infrastructure projects funded by the State and 
Federal Governments. The assets are recognised upon the practical lransfer of the asset to the Council. The assets are 
recognised at cost as supplied by the Contributor agency/department as the Council believes the provided costs approximate fair 
value at date of transfer. 

The funding and construction of infrastructure assets by State and Federal Government Departments, which are then transferred 
to the Cooncil Is expected to be ongoing process. Refer to Note 25 for Funds held In Trust for lhls purpose. 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

1.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities 

Council recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Torres Strait Island Regional Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at balance 
date as follows: 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1.J) 
Receivables- measured at amortised cost (Note 1.K) 
Other financial assets {finance leases)- measured at lair value (Note 1.R) 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings - measured at amortised cost {Note 1.U) 
Finance lease liabilities - measured at fair value {Note 1 . R) 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and offsetting has not been applied. 

The lair value of financial instruments is determined as follows: 

The lair value of cash and cash equivalents and non-interest bearing monetary financial assets and financial liabilities 
approximate their carrying amounts and are not disclosed separately. 

The fair value or borrowings, as disclosed In Note 19 to the accounts, is determined by reference to published price quotations in 
an active market and/or by reference to pricing models and valuation techniques. II renects the value of the debt If the Council 
repaid it In fUll at balance dale. As It Is the Intention of the Council to hold its borrowings for their full term, no adjustment 
provision is made in these accounts. 

The fair value of trade receivables approximates the amortised cost less any impairment. The fair value of payables 
approximates the amortised cost. 

With the exception of finance lease assets and finance lease liabilities, Council does not recognise financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position. 

All other disclosures relating to the measurement and financial risk management of financial instruments are included in Note 26. 

1.J Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, an cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the year end, deposits held 
at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of six months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value, and bank 
overdrafts. 

1.K Receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase price 1 
contract price. Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from Invoice date. 

The collectabilty or receivables is assessed periodically and if there Is objective evidence that Council win not be able to collect 
all amounts due, the carrying amount Is reduced for impairment. The loss is recognised in finance costs. The amount of the 
impairment Is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value or the estimated cash flows discounted at 
the effective interest rate. 

All known bad debts were written-off at 30 June. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off In the same period are 
recognised as finance costs in the statement of Comprehensive Income. If an amount is recovered In a subsequent penod it is 
recognised as revenue. 

l oans and advances are recognised in the same way as other receivables. Terms are usually a maximum of five years with 
interest charged at commercial rates. Security is not normally obtained. 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

1.L Inventories 

Stores, raw materials held for resale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value and include, where applicable, direct 
material, direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads. Costs are assigned on the basis of weighted 
average cost 

Inventories held for distribution are: 
- goods to be supplied at no or nominal. charge, and 
- goods to be used for the provision of services at no or nominal, charge. 
These goods are valued at cost, adjusted, when appliCable, for any loss of service potential. 

1.M Investments 

Term deposits in excess of six months are reported as investments. with deposits of less than three months being reported as 
cash equivalents. At 30 June 2014 Council did not have any term deposits in excess of six months. 

1.N Community Housing 

The Council currently holds a social welfare housing portfolio an<l these buildings are held to meet service delivery objectives, 
rather than to earn rental or for capital appreciation purposes. 

As the buildings held by Council do not meet the definition of Investment Property, these building are accounted for In accordance 
with Note 10 Property, Plant & Equipment. 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

1.0 Property, plant and equipment 

Each class or property, plant and equipment Is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment loss. Items of plant and equipment with a total value of Jess than $5,000, and infrastructure assets 
and buildings with a total value of less than $5,000 are treated as an expense in the year of acquisition. All other items of 
property, plant and equipment are capitalised. 

The classes of property, plant and equipment recognised by the Council are: 
Buildings (Community) - Includes Leasehold assets held on Mer Island 
Buildings {Corporate) - Includes Leasehold assets held on Mer Island 

Recreation Facilities 
Roads I Transport Network 
Storrnwater Drainage Network 
Flood Mitigation Network 
Water Supply Network 
Sewerage Network 

Bridges 
Wharves, Piers, Jetties and Pontoons 
Waste Landfill 
Land Assets 
Plant & Equipment 
Work in Progress 

Acquisition of assets 
Acquisitions of assets are Initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus 
costs incidental to the acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees and engineering design fees and all other establishment 
costs. 

Property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions are recognised as assets and revenues at cost as supplied by 
the Contributor entity where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class. 

Capital and operating expenditure 
Wage and materials expenditure incurred for the acquisition or construction of assets are treated as capital expenditure. Routine 
operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity of the non-current asset is expensed 
as incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of a major component of an !lsset to maintain its service potential is 
capitalised. 

Valuation 

Land and improvements, buildings, major plant and all infrastructure assets are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value, 
in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment and .AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement . Other plant and equipment 
and work in progress are measured at cost. 

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of each class of 
asset does not materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This Is achieved by engaging Independent, professionally 
qualified valuers to determine the fair value for each class of property, plant and equipment assets at least once every 3 years. 
This process involves the valuer physically sighting a representative sample of Council assets across all asset classes and 
making their own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection. 

Any revaluation Increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation 
surplus, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation deCfement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A decrease 
in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation 
surplus of that asset class. 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the asset and any 
change in the estimate of remaining useful life. 

Separately identified components of assets are measured on lhe same basis as the assets to which they relate. 

Capjlal work in progress 
The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council Includes the cost of purchased services, materials, 
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of labour overheads. 

Depreciation 
Land is not depreciated as il has an unlimited useful life. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment assets is 
calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write-off the net cost or revalued amount of each depreciable asset, less its estimated 
residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the Council. Management believe that the straight-line basis 
appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all Council assets. 

Assets are depneciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets. from 1he time an asset is 
completed and commissioned ready for use. 

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned 
useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases the orig ina fly assessed capacity or service 
potential of an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to 
the Council. 

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets that are above the asset recognition threshold are capitalised and 
depreciated on the same basis as the asset to which they relate. 

The depreciable amount of improvements to or on leasehold land is allocated progressively over the estimated useful lives of the 
improvements to the Council or the unexpired period of the lease. whichever is the shorter. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes In the pattern of consumption, physical wear and 
tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or management intentions. The condition assessments perfonned as part of the 
annual valuation process for assets measured at written down current replacement cost are used to estimate the useful lives of 
these assets at each reporting date. Details of the range of estimated useful lives for each class of asset are shown in Note 15. 

Land under roa<ts 
Torres Strait Island Regional Council does not control any land under roads. Land under the road network within the Council area 
that has been dedicated ana opened for public use under the Land Act 1994 or the Land Title Act 1994 is not controlled by 
Council but is controlled by the State pursuant to the relevant legislation. Therefore this land is not recognised in these financial 
statements. 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

Deed of Grant in Trust Land 
The Council is located on land assigned to it under various Deeds of Grant in Trust (DOGIT) pursuant to Section 341 of the Land 
Act 1994. The land comprises an area of approximately 463.6 square kilometres, across the following Islands: 
Boigu lslan d 
Dauan Island 
Erub Island 
Hammond Island 
lama Island 
Moa Island (the location or the former St Paul's and Kubin Island Councils) 
Mabuiag Island 
Poruma Island 
Saibal Island 
Ugar Island 
Warraber Island 
Masig Island 

The land is administered by the Department of Natural Resources & Mines and the COUllcil has restricted use or this land for the 
benefit of Island inhabitants. The DOGIT land has not been taken up in the Council's assets as it cannot be reliably measured. 

The Reserves Land for Mer Island was managed by the Department of Communities, Child Safety and DiSabilities Services until 
the 14th December 2012. On the 14th December 2012 Mer Gedken Le (Torres Strait Islanders) Corporation became the trustee 
under deed of grant. The Corporation is Trustee for the native Title Holder of the Torres Strait Island Land. 

The DOG IT Land for Badu Island was administered by the Department of Natural Resources & Mines until the 1st February, 
2014. On the 1st February, 2014, Mura Badulgal (Torres Strait Islanders) Corporation became the trustee under deed or grant. 
The Corporation is Trustee for the Native Title Holder of the Torres Strait Island Land. 

Buildings and Infrastructure on Badu and Mer Islands are leased by council for the terms of 5 years, 30 years and 99 years at 
agreed values. 

The relevant leased assets are still reported as assets of the Council, land is not reported, nominal rental Is paid except for the 
childcare centre and residence on Badu Island, for which future commitments are $137,893.57 over 5 years. They have not been 
classified as finance leases as assets were originally constructed by council, and recorded as such prior to the change In land 
arrangements. No lease liability has been recognised in the financial statements for these leases. 

Pursant to the terms and condiions of the respective leases, it is intended that the council continue to maintain these assets fof 
the benefit of the community, as council possesses the necessary skills and knowledge to best utilise these assets. 

1.P Intangible assets 

Intangible assets with a cost or other value exceeding $10,000 are recognised as intangible assets in the financial statements, 
items with a lesser value being expensed. 

Costs associated with the development of computer software are capitalised and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the 
period of expected benefit to Council. 

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted 
where appropriate. Details of the estimated useful lives assigned to each class of intangible assets are shown in Note 17. 

1.Q Impairment of non-current assets 

Each non-current physical and intangible asset and group of assets is assessed for indicators of impainnent annually. If an 
indicator of possible impairment exists, the Council determines the assefs recoverable amount. Any amount by which the assefs 
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset is the 
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is carried at a 
revalued amount When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation 
surplus of the relevant class to the extent available. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is Increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset In prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
as Income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, In which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a 
revaluation surplus increase. 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

1.R Leases 

Leases of property, plant and equipment under which the Council as lessee/lessor assumes/transfers substantially all the risks 
and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership, are classified as finance leases. Other leases, 
where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are classified as operating leases. 

Finance leases as lessor 
Council has leased 43 dwellings locasted on Moa Island (Kubin) as lessor to the Queensland Government for 40 years. The total 
lease payment per dwelling in the current year was $2,001, (SNil for 2012-13). These lease payments are required to be adjusled 
each year by the change in the Consumer Price Index (All Groups) for Brisbane. As the gross lease payment& are insufficient to 
cover the fair value (depreciated neplacement cost) of the leased properties, there Is no interest rate Implicit in the leases and 
therefore no finance Income will arise from the leases. Consequently, the leases are recognised at the present value of the 
expected fUture lease payments receivable (fair value). Gains on revaluation of finance lease assets are recognised as other 
income. 

There is nil unearned finance income, unguaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of Council, accumulated allowance for 
uncollectible minimum lease payments receivable or contingent rents recognised as income applicable to the leases. 

Ooeratino leases 
Payments made under operating leases are expensed in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease 
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property. 
Finance Leases 

The Council has no Finance Leases 
1.S Payables 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed purchase/contract 
price net of applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 
day terms. 

1. T Liabilities • employee benefits 

liabilities are recognised for employee benefits such as wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave in respect of 
services provided by the employees up to the reporting date. Liabilities for employee benefits are assessed at each reporting 
date. Where it is expected that the leave will be paid in the next twelve months the liability is treated as a current liability. 
Otherwise the liability is treated as non·current. 

Salaries and wages 
A liability for salaries and wages Is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates in 
respect of employees' services up to that date. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in Note 18 as a 
payable. 

Annyal leaye 
A liability for annual leave is recognised. Amounts are expected to be settled within 12 months and are calculated on current 
wage and salary levels and includes related employee on-cost.. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in 
Note 18 as a payable. 

Q.t..O 
certified stataments 
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Superannuation 

The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the contribution the Council makes to the superannuation 
plan which provides benefits to its employees. Details of those arrangements are set out in Note 24. 

Long service leave 
A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made In respect of 
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and 
projected future increases in those rates and includes related employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability of 
the employee remaining in the Council's employment or other associated employment which would result in the Council being 
required to meet the liability. Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benef it earned to date, and the result is 
discounted to present value. The interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities at the reporting 
date are used to discount the estimated future cash outflows to their present value. This liability is reported in Note 20 as a 
provision. 

1.U Borrowings and borrowing costs 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transacUon costs. Subsequent to initial recognition 
these liabilities are measured at amortised cost. 

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012 council adopts an annual debt policy that sets out council's planned 
borrowings for the next nine years. Council's current policy is to only borrow for capital projects and for a term no longer than the 
expected life of the asset. Council also aims to comply with the Queensland Treasury Corporation's borrowing guidelines and 
ensure that sustainability indicators remain within acceptable levels at all times 

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period In which they are incurred. No borrowing costs are capitalised on qualifying 
assets. 

1.V Restoration provision 

A provision is made for the cost of restoration in respect of refuse dumps where it is probable the Council will be liable, or 
required, to Incur such a cost on the cessation of use of these facilities. The provision is measured at the expected cost of the 
work required, discounted to current day values using the Interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed 
securi ties with a maturity date corresponding to the anticipated date of the restoration. 

Refuse dump restoration 
The provision represents the present value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of the dump sites, 
decontamination and monitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites. The calculation of this provision requires 
assumptions such as application of environmental legislation, site closure dates, available technologies and engineering cost 
estimates. These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from amounts currently provided. Because of the 
long-term nature of the liability, the most significant uncertainty in estimating the provision is the costs that will be Incurred. The 
provision recognised for dump sites is reviewed at least annually and updated based on the facts and circumstances available at 
the time. Management estimates that the sites will close in 2015. 

As refuse dumps are on slate reserves I DOGIT land which the Council does not control, the provision for restoration Is treated as 
an expense In the year the provision is first recognised. Changes in the provision are treated as an expense or income. 

1.W Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes In value of property, plant and equipment that do not 
result from the use of those assets. Net incremental changes In the carrying value of classes of non-current assets since their 
initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation surplus. 

Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assets. 

Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease Is offset first against the amount remaining In the asset 
revaluation surplus in respect of that class. Any excess is treated as an expense. 

When an asset is disposed of, the amount in surplus in respect of that asset in the asset revaluation surplus is transferred to 
retained surplus. 

1.X Retained surplus 

In reference to the comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2013, this represents the amount of Council's net funds not set 
aside in reserves to meet specific future needs. 
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1.Y Rounding and comparatives 

The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest $1. 

Comparative information has been restated where necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the current reporting period. 

1.Z Trust funds held for outside parties 

Funds held in the trust account on behalf of outside parties include those funds held for Community Churches, Funeral Funds and 
Community groups. These have been paid Into a separate bank account maintained by the Council. The Council performs only a 
custodian role in respect of these monies and because the monies cannot be used for Council purposes, they are not considered 
revenue nor brought to account 111 the financial statements. 

The monies are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements for information purposes only in Note 25. 

1.AA Funds held in trust by outside parties 

Some funds belonging to Council are held In the trust funds of t hind parties. These Include grants for major Infrastructure projects. 
For details see Note 25. 

1.AB Taxation 

Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for Fringe Benefits Tax and 
Goods and Services Tax ('GSr). The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to theA TO is shown as an asset 
or liability respectively. 

The Council has identified no activities for which it is liable to pay payroll tax to the Queensland Government. 

1.AC Carbon Pr1CIIlfl 

In 2011 the Australian Govemmentlntroduced a Clean Energy Legislation package. One aspect of this package, which impacts 
Council indirectly is the introduction of a pricing mechanism for greenhouse gas emissions in the Australian economy. 

The Clean Energy legislation ( Carbon Tax Repeal) Act 2014 abolished the carbon pricing mechanism 
established by the Clean Energy Act 2011 from July 2014 

Council operates 15 landfill facilities that have annual emissions of carton dioxide equivalent that are below the Individual site 
threshold of 25,000 tonnes. Council modelling Indicates that the faci~ties are unlikely to exceed this threshold in the foreseeable 
future therefore no direct liability has arisen, or is likely to arise as a result of this legislation. 

Of\0~ 
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2. Analysis of Results by Function 

2(a) Components of Council functions 

The activities relating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2(b) are as follows : 

Executive 

This comprises the support functions for the Mayor and Councillors, Council and committee meetings and statutory requirements. 

Key components of the Executive function include: 

• Internal Audit 

• Administration for Councillors 

• Legal Services 

• Public Relations 

• Community Police Services (ceased 30th September 2013) 
• Building and maintenance 
Corporate 

The support functions of Management of the Councr s Human Resources, information technology and administration. 

Key components of the Corporate function include: 

• Procurement and Plant Management 

• Asset and Risk Management 

• Human Resources 

' Risk & Natural Disaster 

• Administration and Governance Services 

• Records and Information Technology Management 

Finance 
The support functions of Management of the Councu's finance. 

• Financial Services 

Economic and Community Services 
Community services and facilities including cultural, health, welfare, environmental & recreational services, and community development 

Some of the key Infrastructure used by this program to deliver services include Council's network of libraries, public parks and child care centres. 

The program's direct Intervention in the areas of health protection, community and recreational development and event sponsorship ensures that the Torres 
Strait Island Community and Culture remains vibrant and strong. 

This function includes: 

• Economic Development 
• Libraries 

• Housing 

• Environmental and Health Services 

• Senior, Youth, Sport and Recreation Services 

Engineering 
Engineering Services are linked with Councirs commitment to public health. transport, water and wastewater infrastructure. 

Some of the key infrastructlKe used by this program to deliver services include Councirs networks of water and sewer, roads and streets. natural waterways, 
kerb and channel and water quality. 

Key components of the Engineering Services function include: 

• Planning services 

• Water Services 

• Wastewater Services 
• Civil Works Services 

• Engineering Services 
• Airport and Seaports 

The outcomes achieved by Engineering Services are linked with Council's commitment to public health, transport, water and wastewater infrastructure. 

QAO~~ 
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Note 2014 

$ 

2013 

$ 

3 Revenue analysis 

(I) Community levin, rates and charges 

Council Rates & Ll!lvles are set as per council resolution from the Striking of Rates and Charges as approved by Council. 

General rates 3,000 1,598 

Water consumption, rental and sundries 203,784 347,347 

Sewerage 518,907 534,836 

waste management ______ 2_1_4,;,.9_oe _________ 2_2_2.;.,e_o_e 

940,600 1,106,691 

(b) Rentallncome 

Housing Rental 4,292,760 3,072,412 

Commericial Rentals 575,765 525,862 

----------------------------~ 4,868,525 3, 598,27 4 
Council reviewed all housing rentals as a11 st February 2014 and this retlects the Increase in housing income 

(c) Sales revenue 

Council provides a range of goods and services to the community & other third parties for a tee based on these goods & services. These fees are 
set in the Fees & Charges Register adopted by Counc~ 

Sale of services 

Contract and recoverable works 

Plant & Equipment hire 

Airpcrt/Childcare Fees 

Accomodation 

Fuel 

PCM"ercards 

Total sales revenue 

4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 

(a) Recurrent 

General purpose grants 

State Government Subsidies and grants 

Commonweath government subsides and grants 

Contributions 

(b) Capital 

Government Subsidies and grants 

21 ,552,947 19,585,870 

54,955 574,584 

148,784 211,130 

334,572 466,521 

1,307,553 1,069,219 

1,208,114 982,884 

24,606,925 22,890,208 

6,262,528 11 ,577,994 

7,996,311 13,469,378 

4,313,393 4,902,262 

544,533 347,638 

19,116,765 30,297,292 

4,903,762 1,587,665 
4,903,762 1,587,665 
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(c) Conditions over contributions 

Note 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 

Contributions recognised as income during the reporting period and which were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a manner 
specified by the contributor but had not been expended at the reporting date 

Non-reciprocal grants for expenditure on services and 
Infrastructure 

Contributions recognised as income during a previous 
reporting period that we obtained in respect ot the current 
reporting period 

Non-reciprocal grants for expenditure on services 

8,627,735 7,744,937 
8,627,735 7,744,937 

4,815,144 4,211 ,618 

4,815,144 4,211,818 

5 Capital Income 

6 

Contributed Assets 

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant & equipment 

Gain /loss on disposal of non-current assets 

Loss from the sale of property, plant and equipment 

Initial recognition of finance leases 

Less: Book value of property, plant and equipment 

Total capital income 

47,708,532 

93,723 

2,755,718 

(23,418,831) 

(20,663, 113) 

27,139,142 

5,812,818 

158,529 

(3,437,745) 

(3,437, 745) 

2,531 ,602 

(i) During the Finandal Year, Council received by way ot asse1s donated totalnng $47,708,532 through the constnJction ot infrastructure by 
Government bodies and other parties. Majority ot the works centred around Water, Sewerage and Buildings 

Employee benefits 

Total staff wages end salaries 12,915,768 

Councillors' remuneration 774,989 

Annual, sick and long service leave entitlements 2,702,231 

Superannuation 1,660,898 

16,053,886 

Other employee related expenses 663,832 

18,717,719 

Less: Capitalised employee expenses 531 ,915 

18,185,803 

Councillor remuneration represents salary, and other allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duUes. 

Total Council employees at the reporting date: 

Elected members 

Administration staff 

Total full time equivalent employees 

2014 

16 

319 

335 

12,981,412 

767,094 

1,882,934 

1,491,851 

17,123,290 

468,905 

17,592,195 

17,592,195 

2013 

16 

345 

361 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

7 Materials and services 

Advertising and marl<eting 

Audit services 

Communications and IT 

Consultants 

Contrac1ors 

Donations paid 

Insurance 

Motor Vehicle Expenses 

Power 

Repairs and maintenance 

Rent Paid 

Subscriptions and registralions 

Travel 

Other materials and services 

8 Finance costs 

Finance costs charged by the Queensland Treasury 
Corporation 
Bank charges 

Impairment of debts 

Refuse restoration 

9 Depreciation and amortisation 

Depreciation of non-current assets 

Buildings (Communities) 

Buildings (Corporate) 

Recreational Facilities 

Roads/Transport Network 

Stormwater Drainage Network 

Flood Mitigation Network 

Water Supply network 

Sewerage Networl< 

Bridges 

'Mlarves, Piers, Jetties and Pontoons 

Waste landfill 

Plant and equipment 

Amortisation of Intangible assets 

Software 

Total depreciation and amortisation 

Note 2014 

$ 

10,138 

262,000 

1,588,826 

457,391 

7,655,136 

176,645 

2,360,735 

417,654 

1,199,202 

6,937,320 

1,208,104 

164,725 

2,653,897 

2,409,092 

27,500,862 

28,697 

40,625 

(174,246) 

186,606 

81,683 

8,989,820 

2,583,163 

544,275 

4,059,110 

183,261 

65,200 

2,954,147 

4,220,655 

4,050 

484,035 

40,267 

1,164,558 

25,292,541 

188,213 

25,480,754 

2013 

$ 

10,388 

412,000 

1,633,766 

538,600 

6,917,991 

237,458 

2,271,635 

1,672,1 59 

1,935,957 

13,357,702 

1,129,079 

92,327 

3,070,329 

3,360,678 

36,660,271 

30,615 

41,102 

5,433,542 

111,485 

5,616,744 

9,435,410 

2,690,784 

545,307 

3,962,091 

182,000 

65,200 

2,928,126 

3,970,773 

4,050 

545,380 

40,267 

1,330,233 

25,699,621 

188,213 

25,887,834 

Q;\0 
~ertified st~tements 
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10 Capital expenses 

Lon on lmpalnnent 

Property, plant and equipment 

Total impairment losses 

Impairment loss treated as expense 

Revaluation decrement 
Revaluation down of property, plant and equipment 

Total capital expenses 

11 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash at bank and on hand 

Deposits at call 
Term deposits 

Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 

Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the 
reporting date t'111i!lte to the following cash assets: 
Unspent Community Grant Funds 
Total unspent restricted cash 

Note 2014 

$ 

942,710 

942,710 

942,710 

3,202,088 

14,014,078 

57,181 

17,273,347 

57,884 

57,884 

2013 

$ 

10,547 

10,547 

10,547 

10,547 

1,415,436 

12,755,633 

55,269 

14,226,339 

Cash and deposits at call are held in the National Australia Bank in normal term deposits and business cheque accounts. The bank currently has a 
short term credit rating or A 1 + and long term rating of M-. Deposits are held with Queensland Treasury Corporation. One smal term Deposit is 
held National Auslralia Bank. 
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12 Trade and other receivables 

Current 

Housing rental 

less impairment 

Other debtors 

Less impairment 

Sundry Debtors 

GST recoverable 

Prepayments 

Note Z014 
$ 

7,574,529 

(6,976,764} 

16 ,259,891 

(7, 625,725} 

(228,164} 

525,907 

111,093 

9,640,768 

No interest is charged on other debtors. There is a geographica I concentration of credit risk for Housmg and other debtors. 

Movement In accumulated impairment losses (Housing 
and Other debtors} is as follows: 
Opening balance 

less Impairment Debts W ritten Off during Year 

Additional Impairment Recognised 

Closing balance 

13 Inventories 

Inventories held for sale 

Stores & Materials 

lnventones held for distribution 

Stores & Materials 

Total inventories 

14,774,400 

2,334 

(174,246) 

14,602,488 

373,267 

373,267 

44,732 

44,732 

417,999 

Z013 

$ 

5 ,491 ,115 

(5,260,734} 

16,402,935 

(9,513,666} 

295,147 

376,353 

7,791,150 

10,467,306 

(1 ,146,448} 

5 ,433,542 

14,774,400 

499,581 

499,561 

48,390 

46,390 

547,971 
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14 other financial assets 

Current 

Finance Leases 

Non-Current 

Finance leases 

A reconciliation between the gross investment in the lease 
and the fair value of lease payments is as follows: 

Gross minimum lease payments receivable: 

Not later than one year 

Later than one year but not later than five years 

Later than five years 

Add: Estimated contingent rent 

Lass: Present value adjustment 

Fair value of lease payments 

The fair value of lease payments are receivable as follows: 

Not later than one year 

Later than one year but not later than five years 

Later than five years 

Movements in finance leases were as follows: 

Opening balance 

Add: Initial recognition of new leases 

Less: Lease receipts 

Add: Gain on revaluation 

Closing balance 

Note 2014 

$ 

166,326 

166,326 

2,589,391 

2,589,391 

169,405 

441 ,499 

6,266,952 

6,877,856 

4,082,040 

(8,204, 179) 

2,755,717 

166,326 

381,246 

2,206,145 

2,755,717 

2,755,717 

2,755,717 

The calculation of fair value has ind uded an estimate of average annual CPI increases of 2.5% and a discount rate of 4. 75%. 

2013 

$ 
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15 Proporty, plont and equipment 

Council- 30 Juno 2014 

Basis of measurement 

Asset value$ 
OperVng gross vaNe 11 at 1 July 20'\3 

Addiliono 
Capital contribu'liona 
Aasets cap[taliud from WIP 

DisposaLs 
Re'ltatuation adjustment to asset reva luation surplus 
Revaluation adjustment to it\co...., 

TansfeJS to Materials & Services 
C»>continued Project• 
Transfen batween cla11e1 

Closing gross wlu:e •• 1t 30 June 2014 

Accumulated depreciation and im~Wmant 
Opening balance •• at 1 Jutr 2013 
OaprecJation provided In period 
Auets previously nat recognised 

Dopreclotlonllmpoirmont on cf10pasals 
Revaluation adju.atment to anet revaluation aurj:llus 
Impairment adjustment to ~ 

Transfers be~en classes 
Ac:cumulated depreclaUon as •t JO June 2014 

Total written down value as at 30 June 2G14 
Resictualvalue 

R1n~ of estltnated uufut ~in years 

Additions ccmprise: 

Renewals 

Oher additions 
Total additigl)$ 

B"idlngo 
(ConYnunities) 

P'air\< . .. , 

$ 
468,960,643 

ll ,nJ,460 

(22,054,210 
57 ,594,093 

(6,627,000) 

509,6 48,888 

164,834,«6 
8,989,820 

8,781 ,650 
51,075 ,860 

(3,130,859) 
212,987.607 

296,659,279 

e-74 

B"Jidlngo Recreational 
(Corporate) Faclrties 

F~ V:l!~=~ Fair '.i o.JJ~ 

$ $ 
91,150,543 16,007,936 

3,420,000 
270,477 42,923 

15,249,3 001 72,000) 
12,3311,281 1,538,241 

8,$27,000 

98,557.002 17,517,100 

42,078,743 7,636,778 
2,583,163 544,275 

6,913,234 52,301 
6 ,404,225 1,356,092 

3. 130,689 -
47,283,766 9,484,844 

51,273,236 8,032,255 

3~4 8-60 

Road/Transport storrrtrNaler Flood 
Netv.oftl: Drainage Mitigla1ion 

Netv.ork Netu::Jrk 

F' frVa ..... f 'rV.1~ .. ~ =.a;·· Jkl~ ... 

$ $ $ 
176)65,249 10 575,7a5- .4,050000 

2,111,832 82,21M 
1,185,530 

(1,100,000) 
12,868,727 1,398 ,230) 1,n 6,47o 

(268,473 

2,865 ,000 

191 ,331";338 9 ,239,8(9 . 4,852 ,058 

43;970,823 2,672,3~5 1,250,220 
4,059,110 183,261 65,200 

(882,797 
9,520,561 (420,608) 494,572 

- - 1.687.239 
56,857;697 ·2,435,008 2 ,508,087 

134,473,64<) 6,804,841 2,343,9 I 

511,168,G40 

1 -100 50 50 

wa...- S•ppl)' SeY~erage Bridges VVharves, Wasle 
Nelwl::lrk Nel'M>f1< Pie rs Jetties & Londftll 

Pontoons 

; _-,:~v~tae F"!~~ V~h.!i!! ;: :ta. V.i!ht~ ;:_-.,· .. vas:~~ Fa-· \f-:J;· ~~ 

$ s 
69,126,6511 103,751,9&1 61,000 24,802,000 1 0$8,000 

11,251,033 12,089,913 

(3,692,000) 
10,001,687 8 ,6 76,090 10,000 (1,56ll ,e38) 2.825 

(655,312 926 

(Z,M5,000) 

124,287559 124,517,983 91,000 19 ,512.850 1,084.250 

34,184,556 30,1;18,095 49,050 10,508.438 154,676 
2,954,147 4,220,655 4,050 484,035 40,267 

,773,160 
6,711.579 1,627.230 4,569 656,814) 2,825 

- 1,687 ,239) 
41,077,123 36,465,981 57,669 8,648.420 192, 118 

83,210,4 37 88,052,003 33,331 10,864,430 892,132 

1,530,406 J , 41,170 

1-00 2~0 20 11-50 10-50 

Lood Auet~ Plant & 
Equipment 

F'l:rV.:11UI'I Cost 

650,000 12,875·,727 

725,215 
(1,297,847) 

211,000 

630,000 12,303,095 

- 7,751,973 
1,164,5 58 

i09,824 

- 8,006,7.08 

630,000 4,296,38 

lAnd: Not 1-25 
Oepreeiooted 

Wcl't( in 
Progress 

·.::a-:-: 
$ 

2;059;295 
6,089,687 

2,224.145 

1,478 ,459 

(25,264) 
(64,249) 

4;357. 04~ 

. 

-

4,357,04~ 

\NIP: Not 
Depreciated 

~ w 
E 

O ~<l:l 
ro .. ,. -~ --.. './) 

0-o 
CD 

.'E 
t: 
m u 

Total 

s 
1,011,&44,917 

6,089,687 

47,708,532 
(0 

(43,465,357) 
116,782,277 

(942.710) 
(25,264) 
(84;249 

1,117,928,014 

345,710,.153 
25,292,542 

20,122,985 
75,125,299 

-
426,005~029 

69 1.922,986 

I 
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15 Properly, plant and equipment 

Co~r.~ncil a 30 J une 2013 

6a$is of measuremenl 
Auet w lue.s 
Opening groiS vatuo as at 1 July 2012 
Ad~almon1 kl opening value 
Capital Contribution. 
Assets ca p~ati .. d from WtP 

Assets prevM>usly not reccgn~ed 
Disposals 
Tonlfers to Ma\eriala & Setvk:es • 
Discontinued Projects 

Ct~lng gross value a a at 30 JUf'l: 2.013 

Accumul1te.d dep,.c:lation and lmpairmt:"t 
Opening ba lance as at 1 July 2012 
Adjustment to opening value 
Oeptecjation provided in period 

Assets praviousty not recognised 
Dcpreciationllmpairment on disposals 
l"'"'lrmontadjus lmenttc Income 
Accumula~d depnoclotlan as at 30 June 2013 

Total written down value as a t 30 Ju.ne 2.01l 

Residual v~1..1 e 
R•nge of estimated useful ire in years 

Additions comprise: 

Renewals 
Other addltions 

Total additions 

Buldings Bulldinlls Rocreadonal 
(Conmunilie.s) (COIJ'Or&te) Fecitilie.s 

F-'aW' Vr ..:e r-'aH \. :Ll =ttir\l'i"''.L:e. 

$ s $ 

465,160,300 112,446,442 15,919,600 

5 ,680,243 
144,454 88,336 
49,847 

(1 ,880,000) 1,490.200) 

468,960,543 91,150,543 16,007,936 

155,924,341 ~.100,017 7,072,4 71 

9,435,4 10 2,690,764 545,307 
30,477 

525,305) (742,535) 

184,134,446 42,078,743 7,017,7_78 

3 4,126,097 

10-~ :J 

I $ T $ I s I 
2,628.Z43 
3,052,000 144,454 88,336 

L- 5,68 0,24ti__.... 144,454 .L _ _ _ 88,336 .L. 

Road/Tran1port Storm.wtar Ffggd W otorsupply 
Net\wrk Drainage Mitigation N.-11< 

Netwcr1< Notwcrt< 

Fak -~ .c , .:~lrVbl;;~ ~a...-Vffl~Je F.a'· Vallw 
$ s s $ 

175,017,0110 10 575,785 4,050 000 103,059,478 

78,383 
2 48,169 

(3 ,411,000) 

17U65.249 10,575,785 4.050,000 99,72&.859 

40,008,732 2,509,355 1,185,020 32,877.182 

3,962,091 162,000 55 ,ZOO 2.,928,126 

(1,620,752 

43,B~i823 2;6~355 1,2~0.2~ ~4,1114,556 _ 

s T $ s s 

2411,169 78 363 
248,169 78,383 

Sewerage Bri<lge• \Nt'lerves. Wesfe Lond AnetJ 
NehM;Jrk Piers Jotties & Landfill 

Pontoons 

--s;· V al:J·l :"li. '.'a~u~ ~ 311 '/ai<Je Fl' v.~::..?. F;~ Vah!~ 

s $ $ s s 
104,851,788 81,000 24,1102,000 1,08&,000 650,000 

54,192 

(1,154,000) 

103,751,980 81,000 24,01ia,OOD 1;088,000 650,000 

26,901 ,680 45,000 9,963;ose 114,409 -
3,970,773 4,050 545,380 40,267 

(254,358 

__30,8 18,095 ~so 10$ 8 ,438 - 1~4,676 
~- -

$ J $ $ $ $ 

54.192 - - -
54,192 - -

Pll!llnt& Work in 
Equiplt'l!nt Progre ss 

Cc ;it v ~; 

$ $ 

t4,oze,3n 8,175,178 
1,893,8 48 

284,4113 765,442) 

(1,435,133 
6,834,885) 

359.204 
12,875;727 2 ,059,295 

7,542,521 -
1,330,233 -

(1,131,328 -
10,547 

7 ,75U73 -

$ $ 
2,039,699 

284483 N/A 
284,483 2,039,899 

r r.: w 
E 

·o~ 
.r..( Vi 
0-c 

Ill 

To1al 

s 
1,020,703,0ZB 

1,893,648 
5,812,818 

49 ,847 
9,370,333) 

(6,884,88S 
359,204) 

1,011;844,917 

324,243,786 

25,699,621 
3o,4n 

_(_4, 274,278) 
10,547 

345,710,153 

666,134,760 

$ 
4,668,142 
3,950,017 
8,618,159 

~-= :e al 
tl 
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16 Fair Val ue Me .. unornenls 

(i) Recognised fair value measurements 

Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis: 

Property, plant and equipment 

-Land 

- Buildlnge (Corporate} 

- Buildings (Community) 

- Recreation FaciJities 

- Roadflransport Network 

- Stormwater Drainage Network 

-Flood Mitigation Network 

-Water Supply Network 

-Sewerage Network 

-Bridges 

- Wharves, Piers, Jetties, Pontoons 

-Waste Landml 

Council dot$ not measure any liabil~ies at fair value on a recurring basis. 

Council has assets and liabmties which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in OCher noles. 

Council borrowings are measured at amortised cost with interest recognised In profrt 01loss when incurred The fair value o( borrowings disclosed in note 19 is 
provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation and repra..ns the contractual undiscounted cash flows at balance dale (leve12). 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assume<! to approximate their fair values due to their ahort-tenn nature (Level 2). 

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis: 

- Fair value basad on quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1) 

- Fair value based on inputs that are directly or Indirectly observable fer the asset or liability (level2) 

- Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and iability (level 3) 

The following table categorises fair value measurements as either level2 or level3 In accordance with AASB 13. Counc~ does not have any assets or liabilities 
measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation ea leval1. 

The lair values of the assets are detennined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where It is available, and minimise the usa of 
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair Vallie an asset are observable, the asset is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs 
is not based on obsetvabte market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for Council infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist natLXe for which 
there is no activo market for similar or identical assels. These assets am valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs. 

The table presents the Council's assets and liabilities measured and recognised et fair value at 30 June 2014. Comparative lniDmlation has not been provided as 
aUowed by the trans~lonal provisi<ms of AASB 13Falr Value Measurement 

Cound 

At 30 Juoa 2014 Note Level2 Level3 Totaf 

(Significant other observable (Slgnificant unobservable 
inputs) inputs} 

$ $ $ 

Recurring fai r value measurements 

Land 15 630,000 630,000 
Buildings 

- Buldings (Communities) 15 296,659,278 296,659,278 
- Buildings (Corporata) 15 51,273,235 51,273,235 
-Recreation Facil~ies 15 8,032,254 8,032,254 
lnfrastructLXe 
-Road/Transport Notwork 15 134,473,640 134,473,640 
- Stormwater Drainage Network 15 6,804,841 6,804,841 
-Flood Mitigation Network 15 2,343,971 2,343,971 
- Water Supply Network 15 83,210,437 83,210,437 
- Sewerage Network 15 86,052,003 88,052,003 
-Bridges 15 33,331 33,331 
-Wharves, Piers, Jetties, Pontoons 15 10,864,430 10,864,430 
- Wasle landfiU 15 892,132 892,132 

630,000 682,639,551 683,269,551 

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year, nor between levels 2 and 3. 

Council's policy Is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 30 June 2014 

(ill Vah111tion "'c:hnlques used to derive fair v .. u .. for level 2 and level 3 Y-'uations 

Cot.reil adopted AASB13 Fair Value Measutement for the f~st time this financial year and has reviewed each valuation to ensure compW1ce with the 
requirements of the new standard. There have been no changes in valuation techniques as a result of this review. 

Specific valuation techniques used to value Council ass- comprise: 

Land (level 2) 

Land fair valuN-re determined by Independent valuer, AssetVal Pty Ltd effective 30th June 2014. Council's Land Auets consists of two parcels of land on 
Thursday island. Land Fair Values have been measured by the Market Approach by Olreel Comparison. level 2 valuation inputs were utilised, being sales 
transactions of other properties within the region, and adjusted for differences between key attributes of the properties. The main input is the price per square 
metre or price per hectare of land area. The Market Approach is deemed a Level2 q,ut. All land was inspected by the valuers. 

Buildings 81ld lnflutructure (level 3) 

The fair valua of buildings were also were determined by ind<>pendent valuer, Asset\fal Pty ltd effectM> 30th June 2014. 

Due to the predominantly specialised nature of Local Government Assets, both the infrastructure valuations and buildings valuations have been undertaken on a 
Cost Approach (Depreciated Replacement Cost). 

Under this approach, the following process has been adopted: 

Where.there Is no market, the net current value of an asset is the gross current value leu accumulated depreciation to retlect the consumed or expired servk:e 
potential of the asset. Publishedlavallable market data for recant projects, &'ldlor published cost guides ao'e ut~ised to determine the estimatad replacement cost 
(gross value) ol the asset, including alowances for preliminaries and professional fees. This is consideled a Level 2 input. 

A condition assessment is appied, which is based on factors such as the age of the asset, overan coodtion as noted by the Valuer during inspection, economic 
and/or functional obsolescence. The condition as•e•smenl directly translates to the Javel <>f depreciation applied. 

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation for major assets, we have disaggregated Into significant components which exhibit different patterns of 
consumption (useful lives). Residual value Is also factored which is the value at Ule time the asset is considered to be no longer available The condition 
assessment Is applied on a component basis. 

While the replacement cost of the assets could be supported by market supplied evidence (Level 2), other unobservable, or Level 3 inputs, such as est imates of 
residual value, useful ~fe, and asset condition were also required, meaning that Wider AASB13 the valuation of buildings and illfrastructute is considered to fall 
under Level 3. 

To calcutato the II!'Ptopriata amount ol accumulated depraclation, assets were either subject to a site inspection or en assessment to determine remaining useful 
l~e. Where site inspections were conducted {i.e. for visible active assets), the assats were allocated a condition assessment, which was used to estimate 
remaining useful lh, as tabled below: 

Con<lition Rating Rating Description % of life Remaining 

0 Brand new or rehabintated to new 90-100 

0.5 Near new with no visible deteri<ntion 80·90 

1 
Excellent ov<>rall condlion, early stages of 

70·60 deterioration 

1.5 
Very good overall condition wlh obvious 

60-70 deterioration evident 

2 
Good overall condition, obvious deterioration, 

50-60 
servloeabil~y impa~ed very sli~tfy 

2.5 
Fair overall condition, obvious deterioration, some 

40·50 
serviceability loss 

3 
Fair to poor overall condition, obvious deteriotation, 

30-40 
some serviceability loss 

3.5 
Poor overall cond~ion, obvious deterioration, some 

20-30 serviceability loss, high maintenance costs 

.. Very poor overall condnlon, severe deterioration, 
10 ·20 

very high maintenance costa. Consider renewal 

4.5 
Extremely poor condition, severe serviceability 

5 · 10 problems, renewal required Immediately 

5 
Failed asset, no longer serviceable. Should not 

0-5 
remain in service 

Wh<>re a~e lnspec:tiona were not conducted (i.e. for pasaive assets and activ& asset. for which no site ilspections were undertaken), the remaining useful life was 
calculated on asset age and estimated useful I( e. Th<> valuation t&chniques used in the determination of fair values maximise the use of observable data where ~ is 
available and relies as lirtle as possible on Bntity spec~ics. 1he disclosure of valuation estimates is designed to provide users with an insight into lhe judgements 
that have been mad<> In the determination of fair values. 

The depreciated replacement cost was determined using methods relevant to the asset class as described under indlviduai&Sset categories below. 
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1{a) Buildings- calculation of current replacement cost 

CtHTen/ replacement cost 

Construction costs are based on published construction cost guides and discussions with trade contractors living and worl<ing on the islands. 

Building construction costs take into consideration factors mlevanllo the location (such as Increased shipping and mob~izalion costs) and include all preliminary 
and over head costs. 
Changes in shipping costs ere based on Sea Freight Rates tables effective for each year available on the website of the shipping company SeaSwlft. 

Accumulated depreciation 

To calculate the appropriate amount of accumulated depreciation, buildings were s~ct to a site inspection and/or an assessment to determine remaining useful 
ife. Site inspection and extBtnal examinalion of al building assets has been o..ndertaken. Those buildings which are open to the public such as Council 
administration buildings and locations where staff are on s~e such as workshop buildings have been nemally inspected. 'Nith rll!l"fds to residential dweiNngs, due 
to imHs involved with the valuation process, we have lntemaly Inspected one to two dwellings on each island and primar~y just for the p!rp()Ses of confirming the 
appropriateness of nelying on the Depar1ment of Housing and Public Works neports to estimate conditiol'l. We have be.n provided with condition rating reports 
prepared by the Department of Housing and Public Worl<s and dated 19\h December 2013. For those residential dwellings not internally inspected our assessment 
of internal condition is based upon the oood~ion rating contained within the reports. None of the dwellings internally inspected were found to be in a condition worse 
than that indicated by the Department of Housing and Public Worl<s condition report 

1(b) Buildings- Sensitivity of valulllion to unob .. rvable Inputs 

As detailed above Council's buildings have been vakled using depreciated C<J"renl. replacement cost This method utiises a runber of inp.-s that requ~e 
judgement and are therefore classed as unobsBIVable. WliJe these judgements are made with the greatest care, and based upon years of experience, different 
judgements could resul in a different valuation. The table below summarises the effect that changes in the most significant unobservable in;>lis would have on 
the valuation: 

Significant unobservable inplll 

Number of Labour Hours 

Raw material usage quantities 

Condition Rating 

Remaining useM Life 

Residual Value 

Range of inputs Relationship of unobserveble Inputs to fair value 

5-100hr/m2 The higher the labour hours, higher the Fair Value 

Varies dependant of type and app~cation The higher the usage quantitles, the higher the Fair ValUe 

0-5 As specified 

0-49years 

$0 

The higher the condition rating, the higher the Fair Value 

The longer the remaining life, the higher the Fair V&Ue 

The higher the residual, the higher the Fair Value 

2(a) Roads/Transport Networ1< - calculation of current replacement cost 

Cu!Tent ~ep/acemenl cost 

Some of the road network is segmented at a high level (e.g, between intersections) end other parts not segmented. Unit rates are applied to the individual road 
components formation, pavement, seal and kerb & channel of each road in order to determ lne the replacement cosl 

Tha unit rates applied are based on greenfield project costs and include all material$, labour and overheads. These unit rates are estabished by ~ various 
information souiQIS, including internal OOU'lCil costs of recert projects, sub-contractor and head comactor costs of recent projects. This infoonation is all suppjled 
by council or the contractors. Do to the unique natura of constructing infrastructure in the Torres Strait area, the valuation is forced to rely on information provided 
by Council. Publically evanable information auch a• RawRnson's Construction Handbook wes used to chad< the council supplied information for Older of magnitude 
appropriateness. 

Accumulated deprecia#on 

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation. roads were disaggregated into significant components which exhibited different useful lives. 

The roads were vlaualy inspected by the valuer. No testing or measurement of defects or condition was oodartaken. An assasment cf remaining usetuiiWe was 
made by the val- taking into consldetation the visual condlion, construction date, evidence of reoenl repan or capitol works and the StXrounding environmental 
factors. 

2(b) Roads/Transport Network- Sensitivity of valuation to unobservable inputs 

As detailed above Council's road and transport network has been valued using depreciated currant replacement cost. This method utilises a number of inputs 
that raquir• judgement and are therefore classed as unobservable. While these judgements are made witll the greatest cane, and based upon yeara of 
experience, different judgements could result In a different valuation The table below summarises the effect that changes In the most significant unobservable 
inputs would have on the valuation: 

Significant unobservab4e input 

~mber cf Labour Hours 

Raw material usage quantities 

Condition Rating 

Remaining useful Life 

Residual Value 

Range of inputs Relationship of unobservlbte Inputs to fair value 

5-100 hrhn2 The h9ler the labour hours, higher the Fair Value 

Varies dependant of type and appication The higher the usage quantlles, the higher the Fair Value 

0-6 As specif'IBd 

2-92 years 

$0-$2,790,000 

The high...- the condition rating, the higher the Fair Value 

The longer the remaining life, \he higher the Fair Value 

The higher the residual, the high...- the Fair Value 
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3(al Water & Sewer Networl( - calculation of current replacement cost 

Current rep/aC9fTient cost 

The water and sewer assets were segregated into active and passive assets; passive assets were not further componentized and oonststed primarily of mains. 
Unit rates were. applied based on council supplied recent project costs, similar recent project costs from olher entities. unit rate databases, indices, Rawlinson's 
Construction rates and quotations. 

The remaining active assets consisted of treatment, pumping and storage assets. These assets were componentized end valued indapendently, with allowancas 
for complexity, size, function and site factors. As a checll these components are generally combined into a lump sum item and compared against racent similar 
projects 2nd in-house databases. 

Accumulated depreciat;on 

An assessment of remaining useful life was made by the valuer after inspection taking into considera~on the visual condit ion. construction date. evidence of recent 
repairs or capital works and the surrounding envirorvnentat factcn . Were necessary, further guidance on remaining l~e was sought from council engineering staff. 

Estimated useful lives and residual values are disclosed in note 15. 

~b) Water and Sewerage tnfrastrudur'e- Sensitivity ofvai....Cion to unobservable inputs 

The method used to value councils' water and sewerage assets ut~lses a number of inputs that require judgemeot and are therefore classed es unobservable. 
While these judgements are made with lha greatest care, and based upon years ot experience, different judgements could result ill a different valuation. The table 
below summarises the effect that changes in the most significant unobservable Input• would have on the valuation: 

Significant unobservable Input Range of Inputs Relationship of unobservilble inputs to fair value 

Number of Labour Hours 5-100 hr/m2 The higher the labour hours. higher the Fair Value 

Raw materiel uaage quantities Varies dependant of type and application The higher the usage quant~ies, the higher tha Fair Va lue 

Condition Rating 

Remaining useful Life 

Residual Value 

0-5 As specWied 

0-BOyears 

$0-$369,950 

4(•1 Wharves, Plen1, Jetties & Pontoons· calculation of current replacement c:ost 

Current replscement cost 

The higher the condition rating, the higher the Felr Value 

The longer the remaining I We. the higher the Fair Value 

The higher the residual, the higher the Fair Velue 

The replacement cost of the water based assets (jetties & dolphins) was estimated by having reference to recently constructed assets. Replacement costs of the 
other asset including barge ramps and seawaRs was estimated ttvough filS! principles. namely summng together the costs of materials, lebo..- and ovetheads 
which were estabished through contact with supp~ers. cooocil and publically available reference material, having regard to the location and conditions. 

Accumul&t&d depreciation 

For assets above the water line, an assessment of remaining useful life was made by the valuer after inspection taking into consideration the visual condition, 
construction date, evidence of recent nepairs or capital works and the surrour.dlng environmental factors. For assets below the water line, an assessment of 
remaining useful life was made by the valuer taking into consideration the construction date, evidence of recent repairs or cap~al worlls and the surrounding 
environ menial factors. 

Eatlmated useful lives and residual values are disclosed In note 15, 

4(b) Wharves, Piers, Jetties & Pontoons -Sensitivity of valuation to unobservable Inputs 

As detailed above Cou~cil's marine assets have been valued using depreciated currant replacement cost This method utilises a number of inputs that require 
judgement and are therefore classed as unobservable. While these judgements are made with the greatest care, and based upon years of experience, different 
judgomonts could rasutt in a different valuation. The table below summarises the effect that changes in the most significant unobllervable inputs would have on the 
valuation: 

Significant unobsarv;oble input 

Number of Labour Hours 

Raw material usage quantities 

Condition Rating 

Remaining useful Ufe 

Residual Value 

Range of Inputs 

5-100h-lm2 

Varies dependant of type and 
IlPPi<* ion 

0-5 As specWied 

0-42years 

$0-$675,000 

Relationship of unobnrvable inputs to fair value 

The higher the labour hours, higher the Fair Value 

The higher the usage quantities, the higher the Fair Value 

The higher the condition rating, the higher the Fair Value 

The longer the remaining Wfe, the higher the f air Value 

The higher the residual, the higher the Fair Value 

QAO-----._ 
certified ;:;;ate~ 
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!(a) Stormwater Dnlnage ·calculation of current replacement coat 

Current replacement cosl 

The replacement cost of the stonnwater drainage assets have been estimated through first principles, namely summing together the costs of materials, labour and 
ovemeads which were established through contact with suppliers, council, by having reference to reoenlly constructed project costs and publically available 
reference material, having regard to the location and cond~i<ms. Measurements wef'll taken while on site and supplemented with aerial imagery to create a 
complete data set lor Information that waa missing from earlier valuations. 

Accumv/ated depreclaNon 

An assessment ol remaining useful lie was made by the valoer after inspection taking into consideration the visual condition, construction dale, evidence of recent 
repairs or capital wotl<s and the surrounding environmental factors. 

5(b) Stormweter Dninage- Sensitivity of valuation to unobservable lnput5 

As detailed above Councirs storm water drainage network has been valued using written down current replacement cost. This melhod utilises a number of inputs 
that require judgement and are therefore classed as unobservable. While lhasa judgements are made with the greatest care, and based upon years of 
experience, different judgements could result in a different valuation. The table below summarises the effeclthat changes in the most significant unobservable 
inputs would have on the valuation: 

Significant unobservable input Range of inputs Relationship of unobservable Inputs to fair vllue 

Number ollabour Hours 5-100 hrlm2 The higher the labour ho&XS, higher the Fa~ Value 

Raw maleriaJ usage quan@es Varles dependant of type and application The higher the usage qua rOles, the higher the Fair V.We 

Condition Rating 

Remalnlng useful LWe 

Residual Value 

0-5 As specified 

29-42 years 

so 

6(a) Other Infrastructure -Calculation of written down cumont replacement cost 

The higher lhe condition rating, the higher the Fair Value 

Tha IOflgerthe remaining life, the higher the Fair Value 

The higher the residual, the higher the Fair Value 

Other infrastnJcturs Includes the Flood Mhigation Network, Bridges, Waste Landfill and Recreational Facilities, which combined 19pt'esenl aroood 1.65% of &S$&!s 
measured at fair value. 

Current replacement oost 

The replacement cost of all assets which as a group represent Other Infrastructure have been estimated through first principles, namely summi<1g together the 
costs of materials, labour and ovemeads which were established through contact with suppliers, council, by having reference to recently constructed project costs 
and publically available reference material, hiving regard to the location and conditione. 

Accumulated depraciaNon 

An B3sessment o( remaining useful life was made by the valuer after inspection taking into consideration the visual condition, construction dale, evidence of recent 
repairs or capital wotl<s Mel the surrounding environmental facton;. 

6(b) Other Infrastructure- Sensitivity of valuation to unobservable tnputa 

Any change In unobs!liVable inputs in this group of assets wilt have an immaterial effect on the total reported Fair Value. 

(iii) Changes in Fair Value Measurements using significant unobservable Inputs (level 3) 

The changes in level 3 assets wllh recurring fair value measurements are detailed in nole 15 (property, plant and equipment) and Note 5 (Capnal tncoma). There 
have been no transfers between level2 or 3 measurements duting the year. 

(iv) Valuation processes 

Councirs valuation policies and procedures ere set by the executive management team which comprises the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance Officer. 
They are reviewed annuany taking into consideration an analysis of movements in fair value and other relevant information. Council's current policy for the 
valuation of property and plant and equipment (recurring fair value measurements) Is s.t out In note 1 0. 
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17 !ntonglble 11seta 
Softworo 

Opening gross carrying value 

lfllork in progress 

Closing gross carrying value 

Accumulated •mortlsatlon 

Openlno balance 

Amorti&aticn In the psriod 

Closing balance 

Net carrying varue at end of financial year 

The ooflware has. flnlle r~. estimated at 7 yoa~. 

Straight Hne amortisation has been used with no residual 
vaJue. 

Total 

Note 

2014 

$ 

1,317,491 

257,937 

1,575,426 

1e6.21a 

168,213 

376,426 

1 '199,003 

1,199,003 

The software Is a Finance and Administration plalform lor tho wllolo of Council. Commenoement of usa data was 1 July 2012. 

18 T1lldo and other poyobtes 

19 

Currant 

Cnoditors and accruals 

Employee Benefits ·Annual Leave 

GST Payable 

Botrowlngs 

current 

Loans- Queenslal'1d Treast~ry Corpora lion 

Non-cun-ent 

Loans - Queel"!sland Treasury Corporation 

Loa~ns- Queensland Treasuty Corporation 
Opening balance at boglnnlng of financial year 

Principal repayments 
Book value at end of financial year 

2,620,986 

1,643,277 

1,225,887 

5,490,149 

43,862 

43,862 

378,162 

378,162 

463,416 

(41,373) 

422,043 

2013 

945,522 

371,969 

1,317,491 

188.213 

188,213 

1,129,278 

1,129,278 

1,881,953 

1,363,745 

443,099 

3,688,796 

41,392 

41,392 

422,024 

422,024 

502,316 

(38,900) 

463,416 

Tha QTC loan market value at the reporting date was $476,022.87 This represents the value of the debt if CouncH repaid it at tha t date. As ~ is the 
intention of Council to hold lt\e debt for its term, no provisio-n is required to ba made in these accounts. 

Tho Council has no bank owrdraft fa ell II)'. 
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20 Provisions 

Cumtnt 
long service leave 

Refuse restoration 
Employee benefits 

Non-current 
Refuse restoration 

Long sei'Vice leave 

Oetans of movements in provisions; 

lncroaoel(decrease) In pll>llislon due to change in 
discount rate 

Refuse restoration 
Bar a nee at beginning of financial year 

Increase (decrease) ln provjsion due to change In 
dr1caunt rate 
Balance at end of financiol year 

Note 

(Xi) 

2014 

766,573 

2 ,947,233 

29,233 

3,743,039 

274,548 

274,548 

2,76 0,627 

186,606 

2,947,233 

2013 

621,973 

115,243 

737,216 

2 ,760,627 

287,234 

3,047,861 

2,649,142 

111 ,485 

2,760,627 

Note ()(i) This is the present va•ue or the estimated cost of restoring the ll'fuse disposa~ .5ite to a useable state at the end of its usefu' life . The projected 
cost ls $3.005,292 and thb cost is expected to be incurred in 2015. 

Long service l••ve 
Balance at beginning of financial year 
Long service leave entiUement arising 

Long Service entitlement extinguished 
Long Service entitlement paid 

Balance at end of flnancial year 

909,207 

160,517 

(2S,603) 

1,041,121 

612,951 

322,164 

(3,257) 

(22,651) 

909,207 
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2014 2013 

Note s s 
21 Aliiset revaluation surplus 

Movemtntlln the IIM1 revaluation surplus were 11 

Balance at beglnn!ng of financial year 1~0.357,342 153,176,978 

Butldings (Communities) 6 ,518,232 

Btlildings (Corporate) 5 ,934,057 

Recrea tional FaciliUes 182,149 

RoadsfTrarn;porl Nelwo<k 1,869,706 

Slotrr'M<ater Drainage Network (~77.622) 

Flood MlUgaticn Nelwo<k (1,281,a08) 

w.l.er Supply Networl< 3,278,388 

Sewerage Network 7,060,560 

Bridges 5,431 

Wlarve.s, Piers, Jettie$ and Pontoons (912,024) 

Waste Landfill 

Land assets (20,000) 

Transfer of r~~al iaed A11tll Revaluation re'erves to 
Retained Surplus 
Buildings (CommunHios) (9, 156,092) (527,000) 

~s (Corponote) (5,572,800) (658,246) 

Recreationat Facilities (32,100) 

Roads/Transport Networl< (763,429) 

Water Supply Notworl< (1 ,082,000) (1 ,2 19,802) 

Sowarego Notworl< (414,5Bg) 

Balance at end of nn1ncial year 155,407,9 01 150 ,3 57,342 

Asset revaluation s urphaa •Niyals 

The dooinl/ bolonoe of !he uset revoluotion ourpluo 
"""1'flaes the following uset catogoriel: 

~· (CoiTIITOJnitill) 42,841,545 45,218,405 

Buildings (Corporate) 6,773,965 6,412,7011 

Recreational Faciliti .. 2,116,481 1,966,432 

Roads/Transport NetNortr. 85,76 1,732 84,655,455 

S tormwater Drainage Network 758,006 1,735,828 

Flood Mitiyidign Notwork 1,281,8V6 

Wirier Supply Networi< 6,306,969 4 ,112,601 

Sowerage Networl< 11,041,750 3,981,190 

Bridges 5.431 

Wlarves, Piers, Jettie$ and Pontoons 9 12,024 

Waste landtil 

Land assets 20,000 

Other _,fr••ttvct"r' aneta 
155,407,899 150,357,3.ol2 

22 c~mmrtments for expenditure 

Operating leases 

M inimum lease payments In relation 1o non-comcellable 
operating le1111 are as folbws: 
VWhln one y11r 702,566 1,201,490 

01\e to fiVe yeBlS 1,718,531 2,3 18,361 

More than fiVe years 

2.421,097 3,519,851 
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Contractual commitment. 
Contractual commitm•nts at and of rlnaneial year bill not 
ncogni&ad in the fin•nciel stltements are as follows; 

Software contract with Technology One 

Rental Agreement with Convnander 

J&R Refrigeration 
Auslek 

No!1hom W.ter 
RobRoyContnoelors 

T01re1 Stratt Island Hom01 Ply Ltd 

Wail"' Hire 

23 Contingent liabiliti1a 

Loc•l Government Mutual 

Nota 

2014 

$ 

267,007 

1,212,460 

789,100 

754,666 

3,003,255 

2013 

$ 

236,814 

40.120 

361,262 

151,473 

87,1oC3 

888,812 

The Ccuncll is 1 member of the locll govemmon1 rnuluolliobility Hlf.inllnncl poo~ LGM Q\IHnsiiN1d. In tho event of the pool being wound up ot K Is 
unable to meet as debls as they fa I duo, the trust deed and I\Jies provide thai any accumulated dekit will be mot by tho individual pool membe10ln .,. 
~proportion as their contribution is to the to&al pool conlribu\ions in reaped. to any yea! that a deklarises. 

As at 30 June 2013 the financial statements repofted an accumulated surplus and it ls not anticip~~ted any liab~ity win arise. 

Local Govemment Wortccara 
The CouncH is a momberafthe Queensland locaJ government mrker's compensation serf·insuranco scheme, Local Government Workcare. Under this 
scheme the Co•.meil tlas pi'O'i'ided an indemnity towaros a bank guarantee to covll!ir bad debts v-tlich may rematn should the setf in~urance Hcence be 
cancelled and there was insufficient funds available to cover outstandtng liabilities. Only the Queens ... nd Govemment's workers compensation authority 
may call on any part of the guarantee .should the aboYe circumstanua arise. The Council's maxmum exposure to the bank guarantee ;s $345,389 

Mloxlmun Penoi~H for Failuto to Rem~ S""""'"nuotlon Contributions on Behalf of Employee~ 1o S...ptrannu.otion Fund• 

The Ccuncll hu not ronitlodon omounl of 1uperonnuotion moniu hold on behalf of omployoeo tor tho 30 Juno 2010 finandll year. Thia amount of 
$225,657 has been recorded as a Trade and Ql)er payable in the 2014 and previous financial statements. The Counel has not remitted this 
superannuation liabi~ty to the •uperannllation fund5 as the CouncH hu yet to de:termitle if the employees are entitJed to the superannuation benefit and 
irthey are entrlled to the benefit, 'Which emp!oyees am beneficiaries of the superal"'f'M..ation funds heJd. The Council has recenUy tncreased ill resources 
and ha.s agreed to undertake a project of reviewing past Is~ and Council reCOtdi to determine if the $225,657 is a payable obligation and i$ so, which 
e~oyees ilr& entitled to the funds as beneficiilries. Should the Council find that ttJere i~ no obligation to remit the funds, the liabiHty wm be written back 
as revenue, hO'Wever. if.,,,.. il a objigiltion to PiiY tho superann1.1atlon funds, th11n the Counc.il could be liable for aub.stantial penalties 1nd inttrtlt for 
lote 10mltton .. of a supo10nnuotion obligotion. The Council's eotimtto of this contingent liability being 1 mulmum additionol ponaltlos ond lnto111111a 
S1,257,795.oe. 

The Individual compononto of this estimate are: 

Superannuation Guarsnloe Cho/90 (excluding the iniliol 
._ ..... uation obli9ation or $225,657) and int .... ot at 
10% per annum pkJ5 a admirifstrative fee of $20 per employee per quar1er: 

General fntarut charge calcUlated basad on tha 
Auatralian Taxation Offlce general interest rates for 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 & 2014: 

Australlian Taxation omco adminT&trative penalty for faJiure to tad go 
a Superannuation Guarantee Charge Quarterly Statement calculated at 200% of the Charge; 

$378,466 

$122,335 

$758,97 1 

Thls ea1imale is b•••d on the Au1tralan Taxation Oftiu applying the maximum administrative peMiti•• that It can tmpMe: holowver,1ha CouncW 
behvos ~has o rouonoblt otgUment t~ot the odmlntolrotin ponalty ._.m can b<lre~ed signillcantly due to tholosues of the amllgometlon of 
tho pnoviovs Island Council's to form the Torres Slrail Island Reg;onal Council. 

In addilion, should the Australtan Taxation Offtee decide to prosecuta the Col.lllCil ror failure to comply v.4th the recmd keeplng requirement5 of the 
Suparannuation Goarantee legislation, the Council could be fined a further $18,500. 
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GUafil.ntee in Respect of Subsidiary Company 

Note 
%014 

$ 

:013 
$ 

no C<luncllln the ordinary course of buoineu hu provided o guaronteo for l>orrow!ngo undertaken by • wholly owned subsidiary com pony. Thlo 
subailfiary company of the COuncil was placed into volunt1ry ac'm1nlstl"'tion and subsequent creditors voluntary liquidation and Is in the pro~11 ol being 
wound up, Tho Iandor hu recourse to the Council in respect of the guonontoo provided by Counc:ll, however, hos yet to """""""this ~ght. In the oven! 
that the le-nder exercises lhe guarantee, the COuncil eslimates Its liability under the guanmleo to be $150,000. 

24 SUper.lnnuation 

The CoUll eN cont~bules to the Loco! Govommonl Superannuation Schomo (Qid) (the scheme). Tho scheme is o Multi-employer Pion •• dof10od in tho 
,t.uotnllian Account;,g Standlld AASe11 D Enip/oJ'" Bon.tlfs. 

The Queensland Loc1l Govemment Superannuation Board, the tnJStee or ttle scheme, advised that the local government supenmnuation sCheme was 
a COqJiytng s"perannuat.ion scheme for the purpo:;e of the Commonwealth Supercmn"ation lndllslry (Suptrvislon) legislation. 

The acheme has thnoo olomoms referred to u : 

The City Defined eenetill FI.Wid (COBF} which covets fomner members of the City Super Oef.,ed etnelts Fund 

The Regional Oefonod eoner .. Fund (Regional OBF)which COVOIS ddned benefit fund members .....tUng for regional local governments; lllld 

Tile ,t.BF is a donned cont~butlon schema oe donned In AASB 119. Council h•• no liability to orlnterootln tho AeF othortllan the payment of tho 
statutory C<Jntributions n noquinod by tho Local Govommonl Act 2009. 

The Regional OBF is a def.ned benefit plan as def111ed in AASB 11 1i. The Coundl is not able to account for the Regional OBF as a ddned benefit plan ir 
ilC<ordan.., ..;th AASe11e I>Kaust tho sch<lme io ....-to occount to the~ forb proportionelo sho"' of tho dofoned benefit obligoticn, p1111 
as~etland costs. 

Ant amount by which oRher fi.Wid io over or under funded would only ofloc;t futuno benefits ond contribullona to tho Regional OBF. and is not on uoot Ol 

tiab.tlil:y cf the Council. Accordingly there is no racognition in the f.nancfal statements of any over or under tuncfing of the scheme. 

The audited g eneral purpoSI financtal report of the scheme as 1l 30 June 201 3 (the mo5t recent avaiJ.able) 'Wt11ch was not subjed to any 1uda 
qualification, ~nd1c:ates that the assets of ttle scheme are sufficient to meet the vested benefits. 

Tho most recent octuortalaoooosmontof tile sehemo Will undonoken 11 ot 1 July 2012. Tho oetuory Jndicatod tho! 'tho Rogional CBF Is currently in 1 
1atisfaclory but modut fin•nd•l po1ltio n and remain& wlnerabre lo 1dvtrae ahct1 ilnd medium term exp1rienc1." 

FoJoo.Mng the previous aduarial assessrrNint in 2009, councils wete advised by the trustee of the set.. me, following advice tum Che scheme's actuary, 
that additional c:ontributicno moy be imposed irl flo ~!\Ire •t • lovol necessary to pro\oet the eolilemenb of Regional OBF ,_,.,., In tho 2012 
actuarial rop011 tho ectUlOI)' has reeonvne-d no ell_. to the employer contribution lovals at W\1$ time. 

Undar'lhe Local Government Act 2009 the trustee of the scheme ha.s the power to levy additional contributions on councits which have employee~aln 
the Regional DBF when lhe actuary advises such addilion1l contrlbuHons are payable ~normally whtn the assets of the DBF are insufftclent to meet 
m9mbers' benefits. 

The next actuarial investigation wm be conducted as at 1 July 201 S. 

The amount or superannu11tion contributions pafd by 
Co1.1ncil to the $Cherne in this puriod for the benefit of 
employee•wu: 

:014 

s 

1,660 8DB 

Counc:U 

2013 

$ 

14DU51 
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2S Truat funr:lli 

Trustfunda held for outald• partfes 
Monies colected or heJd on behalf of other entities yet to 
be paid out to or on behalf of those entities 
tsrand Funeral Funds 

Cln•dl Funds 

atner CoiMlUilily Fun<lo 

Note 

2014 

s 

335,920 

81,547 

230,920 

648,487 

2013 

$ 

342,951 

&3,685 

245,897 

652,533 

The council performs only 1 custodial role in respect of these monl11. As these funds cannot be used by the Council, they are not brougtlt to aooount 
in these financial statements. 

Fundo held In trust by outoldo partloa 

DFK l<idsono holding fundi for Major Infrastructure Program 4 38,168,702 37,!03,506 

39,168,702 37,503,508 

The llajor lnfrasii\ICIU!e Program is joinUy funded by the Australian and O~~~t~~nsland Governments to deftvor and uwade major illfrntnx:ture capital 
worts in tho Tom~s Strait The funds hold in tJuot <lsclosed above relate to multiple ccuoe~s. Al30 .hlno 2014. tho ostimaled forecast cost to complete 
pro;eds Ydlich relate to Torres Strait Island Regional Counc~ was $24,053,557. lnfrastructul"8 assN are not recognised by the Council until they h•ve 
reached completion . 

.28 Reconciliation of net reault for the year to net cash 
inftow(outflow) from operating activities 

Net result 

Non-cash items: 

Depreciation and amortiaotion 
RavlluaVon adjuotrnenll 
A:aset contribution' in Capitallnoome 

B-Value of Propol1y Plant & Equip mont disposed 

Investing and development activities: 

RoVIIIuatian down or Pf"porty, plan! •nd equipment 

Proceed !I from the s••• of Prcperty, plant & Equlpmant 

Capital grant1 and contributions 

Changos in aporolinganets and Habillieo: 

(lnctoaso)/ doerun In recelvobles 

Oncroue)ldocreuoln ln .. nlory 

lnaease/(decrease) in p~•a,as 

lne<easel(decrease) In llabililioa 

lncrane/(decrease) rn otherprovfsioni. 

Nat caoll in~ow from oporetlng activities 

10,627,533 

25,480,754 

(47,708,532) 

20,1563,1 13 

(1 ,564,665) 

842,710 

(93,723) 

(4,803,762) 

(4,054,775) 

(1,a49,618) 

129,972 

1,801,353 

(41,373) 

232,511 

272,845 

5,280,938 
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27 Correction of Error 

As at 

Gross Value of Assets Added 

Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Value 

1 July 2012 

7,343,086 

1,850,944 

5,492,142 

Period Ended 

Adjustment of Mer Island Assets not disposed at 
1/12/2012 

30 June 2013 

(2,065,866) 

Adjustment to Mer Island Asset Revaluation Reserve as 
amount was transferred to Accumulated Surplus 

2,819,637 

Adjustment to Mer Island Asset Revaluation Reserve as 
amount was transferred to Accumulated Surplus 

(2,819,637) 

Unrecorded Assets - Erub Fisheries 19,370 

(2,046,496) 

During the process of reviewing Council's assets at 30 June 2014, it was discovered that the following 
assets had not previously been recoglnsed in the council's asset register: 

Buildings (Communities)- $260,700 
Roadsffransport Network - $182,116 
Stormwater Drainage Network - $1,167,732 
Wharves. Piers Jetties & Pontoons- $3,661 ,593 

The errors have been corrected by adjusting the opening balance of the respective asset classes as 
at1 July 2012. The adjustment increased the net value of Property Plant and equipment by $5,492,142. 

Council further discovered that some Buildings (Community) and Buildings (Corporate) assets In relation 
to Mer Island remained in the council's asset register at 30 June 2014, despite these assets not being 

subject to a licence or lease agreement. As the freeholding of Reserve lands on Mer Island occurred 
in the 2012/13 year, a prior year adjustment to record the disposal of these assets has been effected. 

The result of these adjustments is as follows: 
Buildings (Community) - $1,354,695 
Buildings (Corporate) - $711 ,171 

This error has resulted in a decrease to the net value of Property Plant and Equipment of $2,065,866. 

As a result of the disposal of Mer Island assets as referred to above, council has effected a prior 
year adjustment to the asset revaluation surplus balances by transferring the following amounts 
to retained surplus: 

Buildings (Communities) - ($527,000) 
Buildings (Corporate) - ($658,246) 
Water Supply Network- ($1 ,219,802) 
Sewerage Network- {$414,589) 

As these adjustments have been effected between equity accounts, there is no impact on total 
community equity. 

The following prior year errors were also adjusted as explained below: 
Unexpended grant funds repayment to TSRA for Stinger Boat (TSRA 11344)- ($43,854) 
Reversal ofTSIJP reversal due to no funding agreement being signed - ($852,830} 
Unrecorded asset for Erub fisheries - $19,370 

These adjustment have been effected against :The balance of $43238.96 was held in the balance Sheet 
(Current Uabilities) as at the 30th June 2013. The amount was repaid to TSRA for the original funding of 

the Stinger Boat Project for Poruma Island. The TSIJP Funding was revenue receipted and held In the 
Debtors Ledger in the financial year 2012-2013 for $653,830 based on a funding agreement from the 
Department of Health & Aging that was not completed and therefore funding was not received by 

Council. The amount $19,370 was recorded in last years financlals and relates to the previously 
unrecorded assets of the Erub Fisheries. 
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28 Financial instruments 

Torres Strait Island Regional Council has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 
- credit risk 
- liquidity risk 
- market risk 

financial risk management 

Torres Strait Island Regional Council is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework, together 
with developing and monitoring risk management policies. 

Council's management approves policies for overall risk management. as well as specifically for managing credit, liquidity and 
market risk. 

The Council's risk management policies are established to Identify and analyse the risks faced, to set appropriate limits and controls 
and to monitor these risks and adherence against limits. The Council aims to manage volatility to minimise potential adverse effects 
on the financial performance of the Council. 

Investments in financial assets are only made where those assets are with a bank or other financial institution in Australia. The 
Council does not invest in derivatives or other high risk investments. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial Joss if a counterparty to a tmanaatrnstrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. These 
obligations arise principally from the Council's investments and receivables from customers. 

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of credit counterparty ability to meet payment obligations. The carrying 
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. 

Investments in financial instruments are required to be made with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) or similar financial 
institutions in Australia, in line with the requirements of the Statutory Bodies Financial Amtngements Act 1982 . 

No collateral is held as security relating to the financial assets held by Torres Strait Island Regional CounciL 

The following table represents the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the carrying amounts of financial assets at the end of 
the reporting period: 

Note 2014 2013 
Financial assets $ $ 

Cash and cash equivalents 11 17,273,347 14,226,339 
Receivables - Housing 12 597,765 230,381 
Receivables - other 12 8,634,167 6,889,269 
Other financial assets 14 2,755,718 

Other credit exposures 
Guarantees 23 495,389 436,070 
Total financial assets 29,756.386 21 ,782,059 
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Cash and cash equivalents 
The Council may be exposed to credit risk through its investments in the QTC Cash Fund and QTC Working Capital Facility. The 
QTC Cash Fund is an asset management portfolio that invests with a wide range of high credit rated counterparties. Deposits with 
the QTC Cash Fund are capital guaranteed. Working Capital Facility deposits have a duration of one day and all investments are 
required to have a minimum credit rating of "A-", therefore the likelihood of the counterparty having capacity to meet its financial 
commitments is strong. 

Trade and other receivables 

In other cases, the Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit protection 
procedures to minimise the risk. 

By the nature of the Councils operations, there Is a geographical concentration of risk in the Council's area. 

Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is disclosed in the foRewing table: 

2014 2013 

$ $ 
Not past due 8,033,285 4,330,160 
Past due 31-60 days 1,198,647 1,879,266 
Past due 61-90 days 331,877 494,639 
More than 90 days 14,270,612 15,189,984 

Impaired (14,602,488) (14,774,400) 

Total 9,231,932 7,1 19,651 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that 
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

Torres Strait Island Regional Council is exposed to liquidity risk through rts normal course of business and through its borrowings 
wrth QTC and other financial institutions. 

The Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilities, both short and long 
tenm, to cater for unexpected volatility in cash flows. 

The following table sets out the liquidity risk in relation to financial liabilities held by the Council. It represents the remaining 
con1ractual cashflows (principal and Interest) of financial fiabllities at the end of the reporting period, exduding the impact of netting 
agreements: 
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0 to 1 year 

$ 
2014 
Trade and other payables 5,490,149 
Loans - QTC 70,070 

5,560,219 

2013 

Trade and other payables 3,688,796 
Loans - QTC 70,070 

3,758,866 

1 to 5 years 

$ 

280,280 
280,280 

260,280 
280,280 

OverS years Total Carrying 
contractual amount 
cash flows 

$ $ $ 

5,490,149 
193,002 543,352 
193,002 0 6,033,501 

3 ,668,796 
255,767 463,416 
255,767 0 4,152,212 

The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly ear1ier or for significantly different amounts than indicated in 
the table. 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as Interest rates, will affect the Council's income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments. 

Interest rate risk 

Torres Strait island Regional CouncN is exposed to interest rate risk through investments and borrowings with QTC and other 
financial institutions. 

Sensitivity 
Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilities based on the carrying amount at reporting 
date. 

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (assumed to be 1 %) 
would have on the profit and equity, based on the carrying values at the end of the reporting period. The calculation assumes that the 
change in interest rates would be held constant over the period. 

Net carrying Profit or loas Equity 
amount 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 

$ $ $ $ $ 
2014 
QTC cash fund 14,014,078 140,141 (140,141) 140,141 (140,141) 
Other investments 57,181 572 (572) 572 (572) 
Loans -QTC (422,043) (4,220) 4,220 (4,220) 4 ,220 

Net total 13,649,216 136,492 (136,492) 136,492 (136,492) 

2013 
QTC cash fund 12,755,633 127,556 (127,556) 127,556 (127,556) 
Other Investments 55,269 553 (553) 553 (553) 
Loans-QTC (463,416) (4,634) 4,634 (4,634) 4,634 

Net total 12,347,486 123,475 (123,475) 123,475 (123,475! 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

Fair value 

The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction, less any 
allowance for impairment. 

QTC applies a book rate approach in the management of debt and interest rate risk, to limit the impact of market value movements 
to clients' cost of funding. The book value represents the carrying value based on amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

2014 2013 
Note Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value 

amount amount 

$ $ $ $ 
Financial assets 
QTC cash fund 11 14,014,078 14,014,078 12,755,633 12,755,633 
other Investments 11 57,181 57,181 55,269 55,269 

14,071,259 14,071,259 12,810,902 12,810,902 

Financial liabilities 

Loans- QTC 19 (422,043) (476,023) (463,416) (509,850) 

(422,043) (476,023) (463,416) (509,850) 

Fair value - hierarchy 
The recognised fair values of financial assets and liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input significant to the overall 
fair value: 

Level1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments 

Level 2- inputs other than quoted prices included in Level1 that are observable either directly or indirectly 
Level 3 - valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data. 

Accord ing to the above hierarchy, the fair values of each class of financial instrument carried at fair value are as follows: 

30-Jun-14 
Financial asset& 
QTC cash fund 
Other investments 

Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Loans- QTC 
Total financial liabilities 

30 June 2013 
Financial assets 
QTC cash fund 
Other investments 

Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Loans- QTC 

Total financial liabilities 

Level 1 

$ 

14,014,078 

57,181 
14,071,259 

476,023 

476,023 

Level1 

$ 

12,755,633 
55,269 

12.810,902 

509,850 
509,850 

Level2 

$ 

level2 
$ 

Level3 

$ 

level3 

$ 

Total 

$ 

14,014,078 
57 ,181 

14,071,259 

476,023 
476,023 

Total 

$ 

12,755,633 

55,269 

12,810,902 

509,850 

509,850 

Oi\0 
~ttified ciLc~t~nu~nls 
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Financial Statements 
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Management Certificate 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 176 and 177 of the Local 
Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements. 

In accordance with section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that: 

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 for the 
establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and 

(ii) the general purpose financial statements, present a true and fair view, in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial year and financial position at the end of the year. 

Chief Executive Officer 

Dania Ahwang 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Mayor of Torres Strait Island Regional Council 

Report on the Financial Report 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Torres Strait Island Regional Council, 
which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer. 

The Council's Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Local 
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with 
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's responsibility also includes such internal 
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report 
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit 
was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards, 
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned 
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control, 
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion. 

Independence 

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all 
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities 
and can be removed only by Parliament. 



The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not 
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. 
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and 
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are 
significant. 

Opinion 

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009-

(a} I have received all the information and explanations which I have required; and 

(b) in my opinion-

(i) the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of 
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and 

(ii) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed 
accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of Torres Strait 
Island Regional Council for the financial year 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 and of 
the financial position as at the end of that year. 

Other Matters - Electronic Presentatio-:'1 of the Audited Financial Report 

Those viewing an electronic presentation of these financial statements should note that audit 
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and 
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the 
financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks 
arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy 
of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented 
information. 

B MACRAE CPA 
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland) 

Queensland Audit Office 
Brisbane 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

Current Year Financial Sustainablllty Statement 

Council's performance at 30 June 2014 against key financial ratios and targets: 

Operating surplus ratio 

Asset sustainability ratio 

Net financial liabilities ratio 

Note 1 -Baals of Preparation 

How 1he measure Is calculated 

Net result (excluding capital items) 
divided by total operating revenue 
(excluding capital items) 
Capital expenditure on the 
replacement of assets (renewllis) 
divided by depreciation expense. 
Total liabilities less current assets 
divided by total operating revenue 
(excluding capital items) 

Actual · 
Council 

Target 

-40% Between 0% 
and 10% 

133% greatertllan 
90% 

·35% not grealer 
tllan 60% 

The current year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the requirements of theLocal Government 
Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013. The amounts used to calculate the three reported measures are prepared on an 
accrual basis and are drawn from the Council's audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014. 

------



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Current Year Financial Sustainablllty Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

The current-year financial sustainability statement that is given to the auditor-general must be accompanied by a signed 
certificate in the form below: 

Certificate of Accuracy 

For the year ended 30 June 2014 

This current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government 
Regulation 2012 (the regulation) . 

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current-year financial sustain ability statement has 
been accurately calculated. 

&~7 -· 
Chief Executive~ 

Dania Ahwang 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Mayor of Torres Strait Island Regional Council 

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement 

1 have audited the accompanying current-year financial sustainability statement, which is a 
special purpose financial report of Torres Strait Island Regional Council for the year ended 30 
June 2014, comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and certificates given by the 
Mayor and Chief Executive Officer. 

The Council's Responsibility for the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement 

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current-year 
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012. 
The Council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the Council determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately 
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-year financial sustainability statement 
based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of 
Queensland Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the statement is free from material misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the Council's preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the statement. 

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately 
calculated based on the Council 's general purpose financial report. My responsibility does not 
extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of the reported ratios, nor 
on the Council's future sustainability. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion. 



Independence 

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all 
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities 
and can be removed only by Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not 
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. 
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and 
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are 
significant. 

Opinion 

In accordance with s.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all 
material respects, the current-year financial sustainability statement of Torres Strait Island 
Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2014, has been accurately calculated. 

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting 

Without modifying my opinion, attention is drawn to Note 1 which describes the basis of 
accounting. The current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared in 
accordance with the Financial Management (Sustalnability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of 
fulfilling the Council's reporting responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. 
As a result, the statement may not be suitable for another purpose. 

Other Matters • Electronic Presentation of the Audited Statement 

Those viewing an electronic presentation of this special purpose financial report should note that 
audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and 
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to orfrom the financial 
statements. If users of the financial statements are concemed with the inherent risks arising 
from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy of the 
audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented information. 

BMACRAECPA 
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland) 

Queensland Audit Office 
Brisbane 



Torres Strait Island Regional Council 
Long Term Financial Sustalnability Statement 
Prepared as at 30 June 2014 

Measures of Financial Sustalnability Measure Target Actua ls at30 30 June 2015 
June 2014 

Council 

Operating surplus ratio Net result divided by total operating BetweonO% -40'4 

revenue and 10•1a 

Asset sustainability ratio Capital expenditure on the greater 1han 133% 

replacement of assets (renewals j -divided by depreciation- expense. 
Net financial liabilities ratio Total liabilities less current assets not greater -35' /o 

divided by total operating revenue than 60% 

Council's Financial Management 

.. Counc:lf •s ng1ed above recetv.a: 1 l'llgh percentage of it: ••sets vfa contributed •sse1s and therefore the auoclated depredation c•n dis1ort the 
ratio• 

-42% 

48% 

-8'14 

Courd measures revenue and upenditure trt!nd$ over time as a guide to fl..lttKe requirements and \o make decisions about the etr.cient iiilocation of 
resoura!s to ensure th& most effective provision of services. Counc~ ensures that its fnancfal management sfrategy is prudent and thai ils lon~tem'l 
finiilnclal forecast shows a ! OUnd finilnclal position whilst also being t~ble t o meet the community's current and future needs. 

Council alms to operate \Nithln a set of con.sarvative guid&-poat& to &nJUf'tl we are nnaneiatJy sustalnabte in the short, medium end long tenn. A.s part of 
our financial strategy, 'We have adopted seven key financial performance indicators to guide our financiaf health. In addition to rhe financial indicators, 
¥Je have the above three sustainabiUty indicators lhiilt have been set by tke Department of Local Govamment, Community Recovacy and Resinence to 

help monitor the tong-tenn sustainabiity of all councils across Queensland. Tlwougllout the f01ancial year, these indicators are calculated and reponed 
on monthJv at Council meetings, as part of a ftJQ suite of lnancial reports. Should there be any devi.tion ~side these parameters, the executive 
manaSJI'ment and Council Yv'il be fuly informed and may take corrective action as required. 

The tabla below summarises how we per1crmea against sot targets tor tho oeven key financial perfonnan"' indicators eslabhhed in our fioanclal 
strategy. In summary, we achieved cr beHerod six cr the financ<al targets, portonnlng strongly in our obllity to generate cash from day-te>-day 
opereUons. meatflg allflnanciaC commkments in the ftnaneial year, and keeping debt to conservative and manageabte ~vels. This was achieved Yd\lle 
maintaining community services and making ongoing inves1ment in convntrily irlrastructure. Ou- operating result In this period was adversely affe.ded 
by the impacts ofw.tter reform and 1his tssue is outlined in more det11illn the coming pages. 

Projec1od f<>< the yom ended 

30 Juno 2016 30June 2017 30 June 2018 30 June 201Q 30 Jun& 2020 30 June 2021 30June 2022 30 June 2023 

-34'(. -33·~ -31% -31% -27% -26% -Z6°Aa -25% 

1!1% 19% 19% 19% 20% 20% 20% 20% 

-13% -12°4 -12% -11% -11% -13% -14'/o -15% 


